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COMPLAINT
Plaintiffs by and through their undersigned attorneys, bring the following Complaint
against Defendants Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA (hereinafter “ABI”). and Grupo Modelo
S.A.B. de C.V. ("Modelo”), and allege as follows:

SUMMARY OF ACTION

l. This is a private antitrust suit brought under Section 16 of the Clayton Antitrust
Act (15 USC §26) to permanently prohibit the proposed acquisition by the largest brewer in
the world, ABI, of the remainder of Modelo that it does not already own, in violation of
Section 7 of the Clayton Antitrust Act (15 USC §18), in that the acquisition may. and most
probably will, substantially lessen competition and/or tend to create a monopoly in the
production, distribution, and sale of beer in the United States.

2. The United States is the most profitable beer market in the world.

3. The U.S. beer industry — which serves tens of millions of consumers at all
levels of income—is highly concentrated with just two firms accounting for approximately
80% of all sales nationwide. The proposed merger significantly threatens consumer welfare
by the threatened increase in price, elimination of quality, curtailment of innovation, and
destruction of consumer choice. By combining the largest and the third-largest brewers of
beer sold in the United States, the Defendant ABI, would have more than 54% of the beer
market in the United States and sutficient monopoly power to exclude competition and raise
prices. Plaintiffs therefore seek to enjoin this acquisition and prevent a serious violation of
Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

4. In 2008, the then number two and number three competitors in the United
States, SABMiller and Molson Coors, combined their American businesses, and now account
for 30% of the market. At the same time, InBev, the largest brewer in the world, acquired
Anheuser-Busch for $50 billion, making the combined Anheuser-Busch InBev (“ABI”)
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accounts for more than 50% of the US market. Consequently, with Modelo’s 5% of the US
market, approximately 85% (and some analysts say as much as 90%) of the production,
distribution, and sale of beer in the United States will be controlted by only two companies,
substantially increasing the probability of price increases; product, service and choice
deterioration; price-fixing: elimination of small and regional competitors; control and
monopolization of distribution and retail channels: and other probable anticompetitive effects.

5. The United States market is substantially more than simply "highly
concentrated,” as measured by the objective standards of the universally accepted Herfindahl-
Hersch Index (“HHI). (HHI measures and grades market concentration by adding the
squared market share percentages of each of the competitors in the market.) The threshold for
"highly concentrated” is 1800. An additional 100 points causes great concern among antitrust
enforcers. Here, the market substantially exceeds that number.

6. The post-transaction HHI of the United States beer market will be greater than
2800, plainly a market ripe for probable if not certain collusion and a galloping tendency
toward monopoly.

7. The market concentration measures, coupled with the significant increases in
concentration, demonstrate that the acquisition is presumed to be anticompetitive.

8. Modelo and ABI aggressively compete in the United States. That competition
has resulted in lower prices and product innovations that have benefited consumers across the
country. The proposed acquisition would eliminate this competition by further concentrating
the beer industry, enhancing ABI's market power, and facilitating coordinated pricing between
ABI and the next largest brewer, MillerCoors, LLC. See Exhibit A for the approximate
market shares of U.S. beer sales.

9. Plaintiffs are consumers and purchasers of Defendants beers who are
threatened with loss and damage in the forms of higher prices, fewer services, fewer
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competitive choices, deterioration of products and product diversity, suppression and
destruction of smaller actual competitors through exclusive distribution, full-line forcing, and
the like, and other anticompetitive effects and consequences that may, and most probably will,
result from the elimination of the actual and potential competition of ABI if the acquisition
were to be consummated.

10. More than 40% of the population of the United States are consumers of beer,
including the beers of ABI and Modelo, and each will be adversely affected it the proposed
unlawful transaction were allowed to proceed.

11 An interdependent pricing dynamic exists between the largest brewers, ABI
and MillerCoors. These brewers find it more profitable to follow each others’ prices than to
compete aggressively for market share by cutting price. ABI typically initiates annual price
increases in various markets with the expectation that MillerCoors will follow. And often they
do.

12, Modelo has resisted ABI-led price hikes. Modelo’s pricing strategy—“The
Momentum Plan” — seeks to narrow the “price gap” between Modelo beers and lower-priced
premium domestic brands, such as Bud and Bud Light (ABI brands). Modelo has put
“increasing pressure” on ABI by pursuing a competitive strategy directly at odds with ABI’s
well-established practice of leading prices upward.

13. Because of Modelo’s resistance to ABI price hikes, ABI and MillerCoors have
been forced to offer lower prices and discounts for their brands to discourage consumers from
“trad{ing] up” to Modelo brands. If ABI were to acquire the remainder of Modelo, this
competitive constraint on ABI's and MillerCoors’ ability to raise prices would be eliminated.

14. The proposed acquisition will eliminate the substantial head-to-head
competition that currently exists between ABI and Modelo. The loss of this head-to-head
competition will enhance the ability of ABI to unilaterally raise the prices of the brands that it
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would own post-acquisition, and diminish ABI's incentive to innovate with respect to new
brands, products, and packaging.

15. ABI's acquisition of the remainder of Modelo will substantially lessen
competition and is therefore illegal under Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18.

16. ABI has entered into an additional transaction contingent on the approval of its
acquisition of the remainder of Modelo. Specifically., ABI has agreed to sell Modelo’s
existing 50% interest in Crown Imports LLC (“Crown™), which currently imports Modelo beer
into the United States —to Crown’s other owner, Constellation Brands, Inc. (“Constellation™).
ABI and Constellation have also negotiated a proposed Amended and Reinstated Importer
Agreement (the “supply agreement”), giving Constellation the exclusive right to import
Modelo beer into the United States for ten years. Constellation, however, would acquire no
Modelo brands or brewing facilities under this arrangement — it remains simply an importer,
required to depend on ABI for its supply of Modelo-branded beer. At the end of the ten-year
period, ABI could unilaterally terminate its agreement with Constellation, thereby giving ABI
full control of all aspects of the importation, sale, and distribution of Modelo brands in the
United States.

17.  The sale of Modelo’s 50% interest in Crown to Constellation is designed to
help ABI win antitrust approval for its acquisition of Modelo, creating a fagade of competition
between ABI and its importer. [n reality, Defendants’ proposed “remedy” eliminates from the
market Modelo, a particularly aggressive competitor, and replaces it with an entity wholly
dependent on ABIL. Indeed, as Crown’s CEO wrote to his employees after the acquisition was
announced: “‘our #1 competitor will now be our supplier...it is not currently or will not, going
forward, be ‘business as usual.”

18. Constellation has already shown through its participation in the Crown joint
venture that it does not share Modelo’s incentive to thwart ABI’s price leadership. Given that
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Constellation was inclined to follow ABI's price leadership before the acquisition, it is
unlikely to reverse course after—when it would be fully dependent on ABI for its supply of
beer, and will effectively be ABI's business partner. Constellation will need to preserve a
strong relationship with ABI to encourage ABI from exercising its option to terminate the
agreement after [0 years.

19. For the foregoing reasons, the proposed merger will substantially lessen
competition in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

JURISDICTION

20.  This action is brought under Section 16 of the Clayton Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C.
§26, to prevent the Defendants from consummating the acquisition as a violation of Section 7
of the Clayton Antitrust Act, 15 U.S.C. §18. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of the
federal antitrust claims asserted in this action under Section 16 of the Clayton Antitrust Act,
15 U.S.C. §26, and Title 28 United States Code Sections 1331 and 1337.

PARTIES

The Plaintiffs

21. Each of the plaintiffs named herein below is an individual and a citizen of the
state listed as the address for each such plaintiff. Each plaintiff has purchased beer produced
by one or both of the defendants, and each plaintiff expects to continue to purchase beer
produced by one or both of the Defendants in the future:

Steven Edstrom, 3440 20" Street, #312, San Francisco, California 94110,

Barry Ginsburg, 7 Highgate Road, St. Louis, Missouri 63132.

Martin Ginsburg, 2033 Whitman Court, Chesterfield, Missouri 630035.

Edward Lawrence, 1905 Mar West Street, Tiburon, California 94920.

Sharon Martin, 3033 Willow Creek Estates Dr., Florissant, MO 63031.

Mark M. Naeger, 5914 Crane Circle, St. Louis, Missouri 63109.
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John Nypl, 16325 State Highway 49, Grass Valley, California 95949,

Daniel Sayle, 12399 Maverick Dr., #E, Maryland Heights, Missouri 63043,

William Stage. 405 Shrewsbury Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63119
The Defendants

22. ABI is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Belgium, with
headquarters in Leuven, Belgium. ABI is the largest brewer and marketer of beer sold in the
United States. ABI owns and operates 125 breweries worldwide. including 12 in the United
States. It owns more than 200 beer brands, including Bud Light, the number one brand in the
United States, and other popular brands such as Budweiser, Busch, Michelob, Natural Light,
Stella Artois, Goose Island, and Beck’s. ABI employs more than 116,000 worldwide.

23. ABI is the resulting formation of the acquisition by InBev, the largest brewer in
the world, of Anheuser-Busch, the largest brewer in the United States. InBev and now ABI is
owned and controlled by families in South America and Belgium.

24, The Chief Executive Officer of ABlis Carlos Brito. By reason of his position,
Mr. Brito controls the manufacturer, distribution, and sale of beer in the United States through
ABI.

25. Modelo is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Mexico, with
headquarters in Mexico City, Mexico. Modelo is the third-largest brewer of beer sold in the
United States. Modelo’s Corona Extra brand is the top-selling import in the United States. Its
other popular brands sold in the United States include Corona Light, Modelo Especial, Negra
Modelo, Victoria, and Pacifico.

26. Both defendants are owned by foreign interests.

27. Grupo Modelo has approximately 62% of the market for production and sale of
beer in Mexico.

7
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28. ABI currently holds a 35.3% direct interest in Modelo. and a 23.3% direct
interest in Modelo’s operating subsidiary Diblo, S.A. de C.V. ABI's current part-ownership
ot Modelo gives ABI certain minority voting rights and the right to appoint nine members of
Modelo™s 19-member Board of Directors. However, as ABI stated in its most recent annual
report, ABI does "not have voting and other effective control of...Grupo Modelo.”

29, ABI and Modelo executives agree that there is currently vigorous competition
between the ABI and Modelo brands in the United States. Indeed, firewalls are in place to
ensure that the ABI members of Modelo’s Board do not become privy to information about
the pricing, marketing, or distribution of Modelo brands in the United States.

30.  Modelo executives run its day-to-day business, including Modelo’s relationship
and interaction with its U.S. importer, Crown. Modelo owns half of Crown and may exercise
an option at the end of 2013, to acquire in 2016, the half of Crown it does not already own.
Today, Modelo must approve Crown’s general pricing parameters, changes in strategic
direction, borrowing activities and capital investment above certain thresholds. Modelo also
sets the global strategic themes for the brands it owns. Essentially, Crown is a group of
employees who report to Crown’s owners: Modelo and Constellation.

31 The acquisition gives complete control of Modelo to ABI, and gives ABI full
access to competitively sensitive information about the sale of Modelo brands in the United
States—access that ABI does not currently enjoy. ABI presently has no day-to-day role in
Modelo’s United States business and is walled off from strategic discussions regarding
Modelo sales in the United States.

32 On June 28, 2012, ABI agreed to purchase the remaining equity interest from
Modelo’s owners, thereby obtaining full ownership and control of Modelo, for about $20.1
billion.

-8—
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33. Detendants simultaneously entered into another transaction in an attempt to
“remedy” the competitive harm caused by ABI's acquisition of the remainder of Modelo:
ABI has agreed to sell Modelo’s existing 50% interest in Crown to Constellation, so that
Crown, previously a joint-venture between Modelo and Constellation, would become wholly
owned by Constellation. As part of this strategy, ABI and Constellation have negotiated a
supply agreement giving Constellation the exclusive right to import Modelo beer into the
United States for ten years. These transactions are contingent on the closing of ABI's
acquisition of Modelo.

34. ABI has the country’s largest network of independent distributors/wholesalers,
numbering approximately 600. Almost all of the distributors are independent, and operate
under exclusive agreements with ABI in which they agree not to deal with any products of any
competitor of ABI and not to distribute any products outside ot their own designated
territories.

35. ABI sells nearly 70 percent of the company’s volume in the United States
through wholesalers. ABI also owns 14 company-owned distributors/wholesale operations.

36. ABI sold 98 million barrels of beer to United States wholesalers in 2011.

37.  The most influential factor in the sale of beer in the United States is
advertising.

38. ABI is a substantial advertiser, spending hundreds of millions last year alone.

39. ABI was created from a series of mergers and acquisitions culminating in the

merger between Anheuser Bush and InBev in 2008. Previously in 2004, Belgium’s Interbrew
merged with Brazil’s AmBev, creating the world’s largest brewer.

40. Prior to forming InBev in the merger of Belgium’s Interbrew and Brazil’s
AmBeyv in 2004, the world’s largest brewers were: (#1) Anheuser-Busch; (#2) SABMiller;
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consumer. Beer brewed in foreign countries may be sold to an importer, which then arranges
for distribution to retailers.

46. ABI groups beer into four segments: “sub-premium, premium, premium plus,
and high-end. The sub-premium segment, also referred to as the value segment, generally
consists of lager beers, such as Natural and Keystone branded beer, and some ales and malt
liquors, which are priced lower than premiumn beers, made from less expensive ingredients and
are generally perceived as being of lower quality than premium beers. The premium segment
generally consist of medium-priced American lager beers, such as ABI's Budweiser, and the
Miller and Coors brand families, including the “light” varieties. The premium plus segment
consists largely of American beers that are priced somewhat higher than premium beers, made
from more expensive ingredients and are generally perceived to be of superior quality.
Examples of beers in the premium plus category include Bud Light Lime, Bud Light Platinum,
Bud Light Lime-a-Rita, and Michelob Ultra.

47.  The high end category includes craft beers, which are often produced in small-
scale breweries, and imported beers. High-end beers sell at a wide variety of price points,
most of which are higher than premium and premium plus beers. The high-end segment
includes craft beers such as Dogfish Head, Flying Dog, and also imported beers, the best
selling of which is Modelo’s Corona. ABI also owns high-end beers including Stella Artois
and Goose Island. Brewers with a broad portfolio of brands, such as ABI, seek to maintain
“price gaps” between each segment. For example, premium beer is priced above the sub-
premium beer, but below premium plus beer.

48. Beers compete with one another across segments. Indeed, ABI and Modelo
brands are in regular competition with one another. For example, Modelo, acting through
Crown in the United States, usually selects “[d]Jomestic premium” beer, namely, ABI’s Bud
Light, as its benchmark for its own brands’ pricing.

o1l -
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49. The relevant product market 1s the production and sale of beer.
50. The relevant geographic market is the United States. There is competition

between brewers on a national level that affects local markets throughout the United States.
Decisions about beer brewing, marketing. and brand building typically take place on a national
level. In addition. most beer advertising is on national television, and brewers commonly
compete for national retail accounts. General pricing strategy also typically originates at a
national level. A hypothetical monopolist of beer sold in the United States would likely
increase its prices by at least a small but significant and non-transitory amount. Accordingly,
the United States is a relevant geographic market under Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

51. Within the relevant market, the tollowing well-defined submarkets may exist,
which in themselves constitute relevant markets for antitrust purposes: Oklahoma City, OK;
Salt Lake City, UT; Tampa/St. Petersburg, FL; Houston, TX; Jacksonville, FL;
Minneapolis/St. Paul, MN; Denver, CO; Birmingham/Montgomery, AL; Mempbhis, TN; Las
Vegas, NV: Dallas/Fort Worth, TX; Orland, FL: Los Angeles, CA; Phoenix/Tucson, AZ;
Raleigh/Greensboro, NC; Miami/Fort Lauderdale, FL; Hartford, CT/Springfield, MA;
Richmond/Norfolk, VA; Chicago, IL; New York, NY; Atlanta, GA; Sacramento, CA; Boston,
MA; San Diego, CA; Baltimore, MD/Washington, DC; San Francisco/Oakland, CA.

52. The United States is the world’s most profitable beer market.

53. The number of brewers operating plants in the United States has decreased
markedly for decades, resulting in a highly concentrated market.

54.  The relevant markets are highly concentrated and would become significantly
more concentrated as a result of the proposed acquisition.

55. ABI 15 the largest brewer of beer sold in the United States. MillerCoors is the
second-largest brewer of beer sold in the United States. MillerCoors owns the Miller and
Coors brands and also many smaller brands including Blue Moon and Keystone Light.

12—
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Modelo is the third-largest brewer ot beer sold in the United States. with annual U.S. sales of
$2.47 billion, 5% market share nationally, and a market share that is nearly 20% in some local
markets. Modelo owns the Corona, Modelo, Pacitico, and Victoria brands. The remaining
sales of beer in the United States are divided among Heineken and fringe competitors,
including many craft brewers, which Defendants characterize as being “fragmented...small
player[s].”

56. The beer industry in the United States is highly concentrated and would
become substantially more so as a result of this acquisition. Market share estimates
demonstrate that in 20 of the 26 local geographic submarkets in paragraph 55, the post-
acquisition HHI exceeds 2,500 points, in one market is as high as 4,886 points, and there is an
increase in the HHI of at least 472 in at least 20 of those markets.

57. ABI dominates the production and sale ot beer in the United States.

S8. ABI has 49% of the beer market in the United States.

59. MillerCoors has 30% of the beer market in the United States.

60. Modelo has 5% of the beer market in the United States.

61. Heineken has 4% of the beer market in the United States.

62. The remaining producers of beer including craft beer and micro brewers have
12% of the beer market in the United States.

63. In the United States, the Defendants will have a combined market share of
approximately 55% post-transaction. The post-transaction HHI of the United States beer
market will be greater than 2,800.

64. The market concentration measures, coupled with the significant increases in
concentration, described above, demonstrate that the acquisition is presumed to be
anticompetitive,
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